IN	THE	SUPREME	COURT	OF	FLORIDA	FILED SID J. WHITE SEP 19 19961
OBA CHANDLER,		:				CLERTK, OUPPLEME COURT
Appellant	,	:				By Critist Mayorly Black
vs.		:			Case No.	84,812
STATE OF FLORIDA,		:				
Appellee.		:				
		:				

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR PINELLAS COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

PAUL C. HELM Assistant Public Defender FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 229687

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. 0. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33831 (813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On November 10, 1992, the Pinellas County Grand Jury indicted the appellant, Oba Chandler, for three counts of first-degree, premeditated murder for the asphyxiation of Joan Rogers, Michelle Rogers, and Christe Rogers on or between June 1 and June 4, 1989, in violation of section 782.04 (l)(a), Florida Statutes (1987). (V 1, R 1-2)¹

Chandler was tried before the Honorable Susan Schaeffer, Circuit Judge, and a jury on September 19 through 30, 1994. (V $_{83}$, T 1) The jury found Chandler guilty of first degree murder on each of the three counts of the indictment. (V 101, T 2710) The court entered judgments of guilt. (V 101, 2718) The jury unanimously recommended death for each of the murders. (V 102, T 2827-28)

On October 6, 1994, the court received additional evidence and heard argument of counsel regarding the sentences to be imposed. (V 74, R 12504-41) On November 4, 1994, the court imposed death sentences for each of the three murders. (V 68, R 11510-30; V 75, 12599-623; A 1-11)

The court found four aggravating circumstances: 1) prior convictions for capital and violent felonies -- robbery with a firearm on January 12, 1977, robbery with a firearm on July 23, 1993, and the three first degree murder convictions on September,

¹ Page number references to the record on appeal are designated by V for the volume, R for the record proper, and T for the trial transcript. Page number references to the appendix to this brief are designated by A.

1994² (V 68, R 11520-21; A 1-2); 2) murder committed during the commission of a kidnapping (V 68, R 11521; A 2); 3) murder committed to avoid arrest (V 68, R 11522-23; A 3-4); and 4) heinous, atrocious, or cruel (HAC). (V 68, R 11523-24; A 4-5)

The court found no statutory mitigating factors were presented (V 68, R 11525; A 6) The court considered ten nonor proved. statutory mitigating circumstances urged by the defense and found: 1) The defense had not proven that Chandler assisted law enforcement as a confidential informant. (V 68, R 11525; A 6) 2) Chandler may have had the capacity for hard work, but the record did not establish that he had a good employment history. (V 68, R 11525-26; A 6-7) 3) Chandler's capacity to form loving relationships was not proven. (V 68, R 11526; A 7) 4) The defense had not proven that Chandler could be rehabilitated. (V 68, R 11527; A 8) 5 and 6) Good jail conduct had not been proven. (V 68, R 11527; A 8) 7) There was no proof of an abused or deprived childhood.' (V 68, R 11527-28; A 8-9) 8) Chandler's honorable discharge from the Marine Corps was entitled to little weight because he did not have a good military record. (V 68, R 11528; A 9) 9) The court gave little weight to the fact that it could impose three consecutive 25 year minimum mandatory life sentences. (V 68, R 11528-29; A 9-10) 10) Chandler's steadfast claim of innocence was irrelevant because

² As to each murder, the court found the other two murders supported this aggravating factor. (V 68, R 11521)

At the pre-sentencing hearing the state conceded that Chandler suffered childhood trauma because his father committed suicide when Chandler was ten years old. (V 74, R 12535)

residual doubt is not a mitigating circumstance. (V 68, R 11529; A 10)

Defense counsel filed a notice of appeal on December 1, 1994. (V 68, R 11541) The court appointed the public defender to represent Chandler on this appeal. (V 68, R 11531)

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. The State's Case

Defense counsel filed a pre-trial motion in limine to exclude evidence of a collateral crime, the alleged sexual battery of Judy Blair in the Gulf of Mexico near Madeira Beach, Florida, on the grounds that it was irrelevant to any issue other than bad character and propensity, that the probative value of such evidence was outweighed by its prejudicial effect, and that the collateral crime evidence was not sufficiently similar to the charged offenses to be admissible. (V 44, R 7338-39) Defense counsel filed a memorandum of law in support of the motion. (V 51, R 8523-8562)

The state filed a notice of intent to use evidence of the alleged sexual battery and kidnapping of Judy Blair. (V 53, R 8873-75) The state filed a written proffer of the collateral crime evidence. (V 54, R 9045-9113) The state also filed a memorandum of law in support of its proposed introduction of collateral crime evidence. (V 54, R 9131-47)

The .court conducted a pretrial hearing to determine the admissibility of the collateral crime evidence. (V 56, R 9457; V 73, R 12220-387) The court found the state's evidence that

Chandler convinced Ms. Blair to go out on his boat was both relevant and essential to the state's case. (V 73, R 12298-305) The court entered a pretrial order permitting the introduction of the evidence as relevant to prove motive, opportunity, intent, plan, or identity, and why Joan Rogers allowed herself and her daughters to accompany Chandler on his boat. (V 56, R 9457-58; V 74, R 12424-25) The court found that the alleged homicides and the alleged rape were not only sufficiently similar, but also shared a unique or unusual characteristic. (V 56, R 9457-58) However, the court did not specify what the similarities or unique characteristic were. Instead, the court reserved the right to amend the order to specifically note all unusual or unique similarities between the two alleged crimes after the trial. (V 56, R 9458)

In his opening statement, the prosecutor relied upon the evidence of the sexual battery of Judy Blair and told the jurors that it provided the connection between Chandler and the murders. (V 87, T 509, 514-28) Defense counsel moved for a mistrial because of the state's reliance on the collateral crime evidence and because the state was making that evidence a feature of the trial. The court denied the motion. (V 87, T 529)

The state presented evidence that boaters discovered the bodies of three women floating face down in Tampa Bay on June 4, 1989. (V 87, T 576-88) The Coast Guard recovered the bodies. (V 87, T 589-600) The Coast Guard recorded the locations of the bodies and provided this information to the St. Petersburg Police, who also responded to the locations of the second and third bodies.

(V 87, T 578-79, 599-604) The first body was found west of the ship channel, between the channel and Pinellas Point. (V 87, T 590) The second and third were found about three miles east of the St. Petersburg Pier, about 200 yards apart. (V 87, T 593)

Dr. Bernard Ross, an engineering professor at the University of South Florida and an expert on tidal flows, water movements, and the movement of floating objects in Tampa Bay (V 89, T 848-52), later determined that all three bodies were probably placed in the water in the area where the second and third bodies were found. A water current carried the first body to the place where it was found. (V 89, T 852-58) In his opinion, the bodies could not have been placed in the water from a bridge or the shore. (V 89, T 858)

All three bodies were nude below the waist and had duct tape around their mouths. (V 87, T 578, 584, 591-94, 610, 626-27, 629, 632-33, 635) The legs of each body were tied at the ankles, two (V 87, т with yellow nylon rope, and one with clothesline rope. 578, 587, 591-93, 611, 627, 629, 632-33) The hands of the first and third bodies were tied behind their backs with clothesline (V 87, T 578, 587, 591, 593, 611, 627, 629) The arms of the rope. second body were stretched forward, with clothesline rope tied around one wrist and the other wrist free from the loop at the end of the rope. (V 87, T 584, 633) Each body had yellow nylon rope tied around the neck. (V 87, T 578, 591, 593, 610-11, 627, 633-34) The rope on the first body was attached to a heavy weight which the Coast Guard could not dislodge or pull up, so they cut the rope. (V 87, T 591, 594-96, 611) The neck ropes on the second and third

bodies were tied to cinder blocks which were recovered from the bay. (V 87, T 593, 629, 634-35)

Dr. Edward Corcoran, an Associate Medical Examiner, performed autopsies on all three women on June 4 and determined that each died of asphyxiation, lack of oxygen to the brain, caused either by strangulation from the ropes tied around their necks or by drowning. (V 87, T 606-09, 641) He estimated that each died two or three days before the autopsy, on June 1 or 2. (V 87, T 609-10, 641) The bodies were bloated and decomposed. (V 87, T 610, 625, 629-30, 642) Dr. Corcoran looked for, but did not find any genital injuries. He did not look for semen because it would have been decomposed or washed away by the water. (V 87, T 628, 631) There was no evidence of sexual intercourse with any of the three women, but he would not have expected to find such evidence because of the (V 87, T 642-43) There were ligature marks on decomposition. their necks, but their hyoid bones were not broken. (V 87, T 622-23, 628, 630-31, 636) He did not find any other injuries. (V 87, T 610, 622, 628, 641) There was no natural cause, such as decomposition or water currents, for the bodies to be unclothed below the waist. (V 87, T 625-26) The bodies were identified as those of Mrs. Joan Rogers and her daughters, Michelle and Christe Rogers by a comparison with their family dental records. (V 88, T 652 - 57)

Mrs. Rogers and her daughters left their home in Ohio on Friday, May 26, drove down 1-75, and stopped at a motel in Dalton, Georgia. Next, they drove down I-75 and across on I-10 to a Days

Inn in Jacksonville. On Sunday, May 28, they went to Silver Springs, stopped at a Winn Dixie store on State Road 40, mailed a postcard in Barberville, Florida, and checked into a motel in Titusville. On May 29 they went to Sea World and checked into the Gateway Inn in Orlando. On Tuesday, May 30, they went to Epcot Center. On Wednesday, May 31, they went to MGM. The next morning, they checked out of the Gateway Inn at 9:34 a.m. (V 89, T 798, 809-17)

Mrs. Rogers and her daughters checked into the Days Inn on Rocky Point Island in Tampa shortly after noon on June 1, 1989. (V 88, T 689-94, 705-06) Michelle called her boyfriend, Jeffrey Feasby, in Ohio. (V 89, T 921-28) Harold Malloy, another hotel guest, saw the Rogers having dinner in the hotel restaurant between 7:00 and 7:30 p.m. (V 90, T 937-43, 950)

Housekeeping employees noticed that the condition of the Rogers' room did not change from June 2 to June 8, except for finding a wet shower and wet towels on June 2. Their belongings were there, but the beds were never slept in, and no one was there. (V 88, T 710-19) On June 8, the hotel manager learned of this and called the police. (V 88, T 658-60) Tampa police officers came and spoke to the manager, then secured the room and obtained the hotel records for the room. (V 88, T 669-72, 720-23) The police found the Rogers' car parked at a boat ramp on the causeway. (V 88, T 672; V 89, T 820-22)

In court, Tampa Police Officer Wilkins identified photos of the car, the hotel room, the hotel, and Oba Chandler's residence at

10709 Dalton. Aerial photos of the area showed the locations of the hotel, boat ramp, and Chandler's house. (V 88, T 672-85) Chandler's house was located on a canal with access by water to both the boat ramp and the hotel. (V 88, T 687)

The Rogers' hotel room was processed for fingerprints, but none of the prints found in the room were made by Chandler. (V 88, T 731-32, 745, 755-56, 759, 778-81) Canisters of exposed film were found and taken to the Tampa Police film lab for developing. (V 88, T 734-35) The last three photos were taken in the room at the Days Inn. One was overexposed, the second showed Michelle in the hotel room, and the third showed the balcony. (V 88, T 742-43) An optics expert determined that the balcony photo was taken around 7:20 p.m., plus or minus one hour. (V 90, T 951-66) Four swimsuits and Michelle's purse were found in the room. The purse contained a set of car keys for the Rogers' car. (V 88, T 743-44, 757-59)

The Rogers' car, a blue, two-door, 1986 Oldsmobile Calais with an Ohio tag, (V 89, T 820-22) was photographed at the boat ramp. (V 88, T 762) The car was impounded and searched. (V 88, T 762-62) Several exhibits were found in the car, including Days Inn stationery, an index card with directions to the Gateway Inn in Orlando, notebook paper containing personal notes, a Clearwater Beach brochure, a Hampton Inn coupon, a Jacksonville Zoo receipt, a key to Days Inn Room 251, and a road atlas. (V 88, T 763-65) Fingerprints were found on the Hampton Inn coupon and Clearwater Beach brochure. (V 89, T 838-44) Four fingerprints were found on

а

the car, two from the passenger-side vanity mirror, and two from the rear quarter panel on the exterior. (V 88, T 765-66, 774) The car was very clean, like it had been through a carwash. (V 88, T 774)

St. Petersburg Police Detective Ralph Pflieger went to the dock with the Coast Guard on June 4, to the room at the Days Inn on June 8, and to the Rogers' car at the impound lot. (V 89, T 798-He looked for, but did not find, the camera used to take the 99) photo of Michelle in the hotel room, the clothing Michelle was wearing in the photo, and the shorts worn by another woman in the photo. (V 89, T 800-05) Michelle's purse was found in the hotel It contained her identification, a passbook, a checkbook, room. and a set of keys for the car. (V 89, T 804) No purses or wallets were found in the car. (V 89, T 805) He also looked through the evidence collected by Lovejoy, but he did not find the camera, clothing shown in the photo, wallets, or purses. (V 89, T 806-07) State's exhibit 76-A was a white, lined card with handwritten notes which was found in the console area of the car. (V 89, T 807-08) State's exhibit 76-C was a sample of Michelle's handwriting obtained from her father. (V 89, T 808) State's exhibit 54 was a blow-up photo of a brochure with directions written on it which was found in the car. (V 89, T 815-17)

Tampa Police Detective Melvin Duran went to the boat ramp on June 8 and observed Officer Wilkins standing by the Rogers' car, Duran noticed a sheet of Days Inn stationery on the front passenger seat. (V 89, T 823) When the car was moved, Duran noticed that

sand had built up around the tires, so he inferred that the car had been there for some time. (V 89, T 826-27) Duran went to the impound lot with Det. Pflieger to search the car for a camera and purses, but he did not find them. (V 89, T 828-30, 837) The gas gauge indicated the tank was full. (V 89, T 830)

Hal Rogers testified that he is a dairy farmer with a family farm. His wife Joan and daughters Michelle and Christe actively helped him with the farm work. (V 89, T 876, 891) Joan also worked the midnight shift as a forklift operator at Peyton's Northern in Indiana. (V 89, T 890-91) At the time of their deaths, Joan was 36 years old, Michelle was 17, and Christe was 14. (V 89, T 876)

Mr. Rogers became aware of their plan to go to Florida a couple of weeks before they left. (V 89, T 876-77) They had never been to the Orlando and Tampa area before. In May and June, 1989, the Rogers did not have any friends, relatives, or acquaintances in the area. (V 89, T 877) The sole purpose of the trip was to take a vacation. (V 89, T 877-78) Mr. Rogers expected them to return on June 3 because Joan had to return to work and Michelle was supposed to start summer school on Monday, June 5. He last heard from his wife and children on the prior Monday evening, Memorial Day. Joan called and said they planned to go to Epcot Center **and** to MGM or Disney World. (V 89, T 878) He never heard from them after they arrived in Tampa. (V 89, T 879) Mr. Rogers became concerned when they had not returned by Tuesday and contacted the authorities. (V 89, T 880)

Mrs. Rogers and her daughters took a 35 mm Nikon camera with them which was never recovered. Joan had a purse and wallet that were never returned. (V 89, T 879) Michelle carried a wallet which was never returned. (V 89, T 880)

Mr. Rogers provided writing samples to the police: Joan's calendar, a postcard from her dated May 29, 1989, Joan's notes of her plans for the trip, Christe's test paper, and one of Michelle's test papers. (V 89, T 880-83) Mr. Rogers identified Michelle's handwriting on state exhibit 76-A, an index card. (V 89, T 883-84) He also identified the box for the missing camera, which he found at home and provided to the police. (V 89, T 884-85) He identified a photo of Joan taken a day or two before Mother's Day in 1989, a photo of Michelle in her prom dress taken two or three weeks before the trip, and a photo of Christe from the film found in the hotel room. The photos were admitted in evidence over defense counsel's renewed objections. (V 89, T 886-90)

Mr. Rogers further testified that his mother had a trailer in Ellenton, Florida, just south of the Sunshine Skyway Bridge, but neither he nor his wife had ever been there. (V 89, T 905, 920) His mother sometimes went down there during the winter, but he thought she was in Michigan in May and June, 1989. (V 89, T 920) He did not consider his mother to be a relative. (V 89, T 921) In March, 1989, Rogers was billed for a series of calls made from the 813 area code and charged to his phone. (V 89, T 906, 919-20)

Sharon Baumgardner was a personnel assistant for Peyton's Northern, a Kroger and Super X distribution center, in Bluffton,

Indiana, across the state line from Wilshire, Ohio. Joan Rogers worked there in 1989. (V 90, T 974-75) Baumgardner identified Mrs. Rogers' handwriting on several documents from her personnel file, state's exhibits 73 A-J. (V 90, T 976-78) Mrs. Rogers first submitted a vacation request in the spring of 1989 on March 13 for the week of June 4 to 10. On March 15, she submitted a second vacation request for May 29 to June 2, which she later changed to May 29 to June 5. She looked very tired and burned out. (V 90, T 978-79)

Freida Schwierterman worked with Mrs. Rogers at Peyton's Northern doing stock work and filling out work orders on a daily basis. (V 90, T 980-81) When describing an item with two colors, it was their routine practice to put the predominant color first. (V 90, T 990, 995) Mark Sauers also worked with Mrs. Rogers at Peyton's Northern. He identified state's exhibit 75 as machine operative tests filled out by Mrs. Rogers. (V 90, T 996-97)

Agent James Henry Mathis, an FBI handwriting expert, examined a note written on Days Inn stationery, compared it with known samples of Joan Rogers' handwriting, and determined that she wrote the note. The note stated, "Turn right. West W on 60, two and one-half miles before the bridge on right side at light, blue W/WHT." (V 90, T 1007-10) Louis Hupp, an FBI fingerprint specialist, examined the note and found ten identifiable fingerprints, one made by Joan Rogers, and nine made by Christe Rogers. (V 90, T 1012-15)

In September, 1989, Officer James Kappel of the St. Petersburg Police became aware of an alleged rape in Madeira Beach involving a Canadian tourist. He then traveled to Canada to interview the alleged rape victim, Judy Blair, and her friend, Barbara. (V 91, T 1123-24) A Canadian sketch artist prepared a composite drawing based on their descriptions. (V 91, T 1124-25) Kappel obtained descriptions of the suspect and his vehicle and boat. (V 91, T 1125) The composite and descriptions were published on November 3 in a press release which indicated there was a connection between the rape and the murders. (V 91, T 1126-27)

Joann Steffey lived at 10713 Dalton Avenue in Tampa. Oba Chandler lived two doors east of her. He moved in around December, 1988. (V 90, T 1016-17) Chandler had a boat which he kept in his driveway for a long time, then put it behind the wall around the house on a trailer. She never saw it hanging on davits. The boat was blue and white. Chandler had a black four-wheel-drive vehicle. (V 90, T 1017-18) Steffey was aware of the media reports concerning the Rogers homicides. When she saw the composite drawing, and the potential connection between the rape and the homicide, she thought Chandler might be the person. (V 90, T 1018-19)

Defense counsel objected and moved for a mistrial based on the introduction of the rape. The court allowed the defense to have a standing objection, motion for mistrial, and motion to strike all references to the <u>Williams</u> rule testimony. (V 90, T 1019-20)

Steffey cut out the composite and put it on her refrigerator in November, 1989. (V 90, T 1021) At that time, she tried to

locate Chandler's vehicle, but it was gone for about a month. (v 90, T 1024) In May, 1992, she saw an article with a picture of handwriting on a brochure. She compared it with Chandler's writing on her next door neighbor's copy of Chandler's estimate for a screened porch and thought the writing on the brochure was his. (V 90, T 1021-23) Steffey called the police task force in St. Petersburg, and her neighbor faxed the estimate to the police. (V 90, T 1024)

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