OBA CHANDLER,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CASE NO. 84,812

# 

JAN 18 1997

CLEME, SUPPLIE COURT

Chief Departy Clock

AMENDED ANSWER BRIEF OF THE APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

### CANDANCE M SABELLA

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0445071 Westwood center 2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700 Tampa, Florida 33607-2366 (813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE



#

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

The instant case presents far greater similarities than did the evidence held admissible in <u>Duckett</u>. As previously noted, all were tourists and were from areas of the country with which the

defendant could claim familiarity. Four of the five were much younger than Chandler and would be considered attractive. The age and maturity differences are no greater than the difference between 18 and 19 year olds in <u>Duckett</u> and the final 11 year old murder victim. Also the same variance in sexual activity is greater in <u>Duckett</u> than in the instant case. The Williams Rule victims in <u>Duckett</u> were touched and kissed but not raped as had been the murder victim. Although both victims had been the objects of the defendant's sexual intentions, the incidents do not reflect any greater degree of similarity than in the instant case.

The collateral crime evidence in the instant case is relevant and material to a number of issues and was properly admitted. The use of this evidence is not a case of the State using unnecessary evidence merely to show propensity or bad character. The evidence was a central and crucial point of the State's case. The evidence shows a common modus operandi, establishes the motive and intent in the defendant's contact with the victims and rebutted arguments attempting to explain these factors away.

Recently, this Court in C<u>onsalvo v. State</u>, 21 Fla. Law Weekly 5423 (Fla. 10/12/96) held that evidence of a subsequent burglary was admissible in Consalvo's murder trial though it may not have qualified as similar fact evidence as it established how law enforcement discovered Consalvo's part in the murder and the

context in which Consalvo made certain inculpatory statements.<sup>2</sup> This Court specifically stated:

> The evidence was also admissible as inextricably intertwined. As we noted above, claim three relating to the admission of evidence of the Walker burglary was not preserved for appeal. Nevertheless, even if it were preserved, it would be. In Florida, evidence of other crimes, wrongs and acts is admissible if it is relevant (i.e., it is probative of a material issue other than the bad character or propensity of an individual). Charles W. Ehrhardt, Florida Evidence § 404.9, at 156 (1995 ed.). See Hartlev v. State, No. 83,021, slip op. at 7 (Fla. Sept. 19, 1996) (citing Griffin v. State, 639 So. 2d 966 (Fla. 1994), cert. <u>denied</u>, 115 s. ct. 1317, 131 L. Ed. 2d 198 (1995)) (both stating that evidence of other crimes which are "inseparable from the crime charged" is admissible under section 90.402).

> The Walker burglary was closely connected to the murder of Pezza and was part of the entire context of the crime. When the police caught appellant burglarizing the Walker residence, they found Pezza's checkbook on his person. It was also as a result of the Walker burglary that police placed appellant in custody. Furthermore, appellant was in jail for this burglary when he placed the incriminating call to his mother and stated that the police were going to implicate him in a murder.

> > Consalvo\_v.<u>State</u>, 21 Fla. Law Weekly S423 (emphasis added)

In the instant case, Detectives investigating the Rogers'

homicides became aware of the May 15, 1989 rape of Canadian tourist

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>In <u>Consalvo</u> this Court found that while it was improper for the prosecutor to argue the Walker burglary as similar fact evidence because it was not admitted for that purpose, it was harmless error because the evidence was properly admitted as inextricably intertwined.

Judy Blair. (V91, T1123-24) They immediately recognized the significance of the similar pattern reflected in the commission of the two crimes, only days apart. Chandler's former neighbor, Joan Steffey identified his boat, his car and his handwriting, based on a composite drawing made by the rape victim Judy Blair. (V90, T1016-1) Because of the rape connection, Chandler was apprehended and identified as the same person whose handwriting and palmprint were on the brochure in the Rogers' car. Furthermore, Chandler's flight to Ohio and the inculpatory statements Chandler made to the Mays were a result of the police connecting the two crimes. Chandler claimed that at the time he fled to Ohio he was only concerned about the rape because he did not connect the Rogers' photographs to the people he had given directions to until they made the handwriting connection.

Thus, in the instant case, as in <u>Consalvo</u>, Chandler was arrested for the Rogers' homicide because of the collateral crime arrest and the rape evidence was admissible to explain Chandler's flight out of state and the resulting inculpatory statements made to Rick and Krystal Mays. As Chandler claimed that the flight was not because he had made a connection to the women he met and gave directions to as the Rogers until well after he returned from Ohio. Chandler's claim was that the flight to Ohio was a result only of his fear that they were seeking him for the rape. According ly, as

this evidence was relevant and admissible as inextricably intertwined evidence, Chandler has shown no abuse of discretion. See, <u>Henry V, State</u>, 649 So.2d 1361 (Fla. 1994) (facts of prior murder of mother were so inextricably intertwined with murder of son that to separate them would have resulted in disjointed testimony that would have led to confusion.) <u>Henry V. State</u>, 649 So.2d 1366, 1368 (Fla. 1994) (facts relating to son's murder inextricably intertwined with facts pertaining to mother's murder and to try to totally separate the facts of both murders would have been unwieldy and likely have led to confusion.)

Chandler also argues that in light of Judy Blair's emotional testimony the collateral crime evidence should have been excluded. This claim was not asserted to the court below. Although counsel objected to Judy Blair's crying and claimed that it was prejudicial, he did not assert that the collateral crime evidence should be excluded or that its admission was erroneous due to prejudice resulting from Judy Blair crying on the witness stand. Accordingly, this aspect of the claim is barred.

Furthermore, the record does not support his claim of prejudice. Upon counsel's objection and his motion for mistrial Judge Schaeffer made the following factual finding, "That is about the least amount of emotion I've ever seen from a person who says she was raped in a courtroom. It was practically nothing. It

should - - could have been a great deal more and not brought any thought for a mistrial." (V94, T1646) The record also shows that defense counsel admitted that he did not hear Judy Blair cry out loud and he wasn't sure that she had tears in her eyes. Additionally, the court noted that the jury was immediately removed and that Judy Blair quickly regained her composure. (V94, T1646)

Chandler also raises the specter of improper prosecutorial comment with regard to the collateral crime evidence. However, a review of the state's closing argument shows that no objection was raised to the comments Chandler now challenges or on the basis that Chandler now asserts until after the state had finished closing argument. (V101 T 2629-38, 2669) The only objection raised during the final closing argument was a claim that the state had improperly commented on the defendant's right to remain silent. (V101 T 2645) The failure to raise a contemporaneous objection bars review of this claim. Waterhouse v. State, 596 So.2d 1008 (Fla. 1992).

Based on the foregoing the state urges this Court to find that the admission of the collateral crime evidence was within the trial court's discretion and that appellant has failed to show an abuse of that discretion or that harmful error has occurred.

## ISSUE II

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT VIOLATED APPELLANT'S RIGHT TO REMAIN SILENT REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE PRIOR SEXUAL BATTERY, ΒY REOUIRING CHANDLER TO REPEATEDLY INVOKE HIS FIFTH AMENDMENT PRIVILEGE BEFORE THE JURY IN RESPONSE TO THE STATE'S QUESTIONS ABOUT THE SEXUAL BATTERY.

Appellant contends as his second claim of error, that the trial court committed reversible error when it allowed the state to cross-examine him with regard to the sexual battery of Judy Blair, otherwise referred to as the Madeira Beach rape, despite defense counsel's assertion that Chandler would invoke his Fifth Amendment privilege with regard to the sexual battery. With regard to the harmfulness of the alleged error, Chandler alleges that the danger of the jury drawing adverse inferences of guilt from him having to invoke his privilege before the jury twenty-one times was so prejudicial that the error could not be harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. It is the state's position that no harmful error has been shown.

First, while the state maintains that no error was committed, Chandler's claim of prejudice is so preposterous, that it should be addressed at the outset. The problem with his contention that the jury may have inferred his guilt from the fact that he invoked the Fifth, is that Chandler admitted in opening statements that the state could prove he was guilty of the Madeira Beach rape. (V87, T547, V98, T2160-62) Furthermore, the state

presented both Barbara Mottram and Judy Blair who identified Chandler as the man who sexually battered Judy Blair on the blue and white boat off Madeira Beach approximately two weeks before the Rogers' murders. Thus, long before Chandler invoked the Fifth concerning the Madeira Beach rape, the jury had already accepted Chandler's guilt for the Madeira Beach rape. Therefore, any *inference* of quilt for the Madeira Beach rape from the invocation of the Fifth is undeniably harmless. Similarly, if it is Chandler's contention that the jury could have inferred that he was guilty of the Rogers' murder because he took the Fifth as to the Madeira Beach rape, the same reasoning applies. The jury was no more likely to think he was guilty of the murders because he generally refused to answer questions on cross-examination than it would have based on the defense's prior admissions concerning the Madeira Beach rape and Barbara Mottram and Judy Blair's identification of him. Under either premise, error, if any, is harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.

Secondly, the state maintains that no error has been shown. Chandler was a defense witness, not a state witness. Thus, Chandler's reliance on case law concerning comments on the defendant's right to remain silent, as well as the calling and questioning of a witness who intends to invoke the Fifth is misplaced. As the United States Supreme Court has made clear, "the case of an accused who voluntarily takes the stand and the case of

an accused who refrains from testifying (Bruno V, United States, 308 U.S. 287, 60 S.Ct. 198, 84 L.Ed. 257) are of course vastly John<u>son v. U.S.</u>, 318 U.S. 18, 9 63 S.Ct. 549 'different.'" (1943), citing, Raffel v. United states, 271 U.S. 494, 46 S.Ct. 566, 70 L.Ed. 1054 (1940). Further, "when a defendant voluntarily testifies to the merits, and not just upon a purely collateral matter, the prosecutor may comment upon the defendant's failure to deny or explain incriminating facts already in evidence." McGahee v. Massev, 667 F.2d 1357 (11th Cir. 1982), quoting, Callowav y. Wainwright, 409 F.2d 59, 65 (5th Cir. 1968), cert. denied, 395 U.S. 909, 89 S.Ct. 1752, 23 L.Ed.2d 222 (1969). See, also, Tucker v. Francis, 723 F.2d 1504 (11th Cir. 1984). As Chandler took the stand and testified fully as to his claimed defense, Chandler has failed to show that Judge Schaeffer abused her discretion in allowing the state to cross-examine him as any other defense witness.

Appellant's complaint that the prosecutor was allowed to question him about the Madeira Beach rape, thereby, forcing him to invoke the Fifth twenty-one times before the jury, was also raised by the infamous Patricia Hearst who claimed that she was compelled to invoke the Fifth forty-two times in response to questions about collateral bank robberies she had committed with the Siambanese Liberation Army. Upon denying the claim the court held:

> Appellant argues that even if she had no right to refuse to answer the government's questions, the court erred in allowing the prosecution to continue to ask questions which

it knew would elicit reseated assertions of the privilege against self-incrimination. We find that appellant's authorities do not support her proposition. Her cases involve situations in which the government or the 'defendant questioned a witness or а co-defendant, knowing that a valid, unwaived Fifth Amendment privilege would be asserted. E. q., United States v. Roberts, 503 F.2d 598 (9th Cir. 1974), <u>crt. adnied</u> 419 U.S. 1113, 95 S.Ct. 791, 42 L.Ed.2d 811 (1975); United States v. Beve, 445 F.2d 1037 (9th Cir. 1971); Sanders v. United States, 373 F.2d 735 (9th Cir. 1967). She fails to offer support relating to the very different problem, present in our case, in which the government attempts to cross-examine a witness-defendant who has previously waived his privilege against self-incrimination.

In determining whether it is improper for the government to ask a defendant guestions which will result in an assertion of the privilege against self-incrimination, the central consideration is whether the defendant has waived his privilege as to the propounded questions. When a witness or a defendant has a valid Fifth Amendment privilege, government questions designed to elicit this privilege present to the jury information that is misleading, irrelevant to the issue of the witness's or the defendant's credibility, and not subject to examination by defense counsel. see Namet v. United States, 373 U.S. 179, 186-87, 83 S.Ct. 1151, 10 L.Ed.2d 278 (1963). Therefore, we do not allow this form of questioning,

But we ha defendant has voluntarily waived his Fifth Amendment privilege by est in in his own behalf, the rationale for prohibiting privilege-invoking gueries on <u>cross-examination</u>does<u>not</u>applv. The defendant has chosen to make an issue of his credibility; he has elected to take his case to the jury in the most direct fashion. The government, accordingly, has a right to challenge the defendant's story on cross-examination. Brown v. United States,

supra, 356 U.S. at 154-56, 78 S.Ct. 622. The government may impeach the defendant by developing inconsistencies in his testimony; the government may also successfully impeach him by asking guestions which he refuses to answer. If the refusals could not be put before the jury, the defendant would have the unusual and grossly unfair ability to insulate himself from challenges merely by declining to answer embarrassing questions. He alone could control the presentation of evidence to the jury.

Our view finds support in decisions construing the propriety of judicial and prosecutorial comment upon a defendant's refusal to testify. <u>Grifin v. California</u> 380 U.S. 609, 615, 85 S.Ct. 1229, 14 L.Ed.2; 106 (1965), held that neither the government nor the court may comment on an accused's exercise of his Fifth Amendment privilege by refusing to testify. But it has long been established that comment is allowed when a defendant fails to explain evidence against him after first waiving his privilege by taking the witness stand. <u>Caminetti v United</u> States, 242 U.S. 470, 492-95, 37 S.Ct. 192, 61 L.Ed. 442 (1917). (FN7) Since the offering of questions designed to elicit invocations of the Fifth Amendment is really only a form of comment upon the defendant's failure to testify, intended to present to the jury the government's interpretation of his credibility, we believe that the rule of Caminetti should apply to the present case.

We have concluded that appellant waived her privilege against self-incrimination with respect to her activities during the interval between her arrival in Las Vegas and her arrest in San Francisco. Therefore, it was permissible for the government to ask questions about this period, even though they led to 42 assertions of the Fifth Amendment.

> <u>U.S. V. Hearst</u> 563 F.2d 1331 (9th Cir. 1977) (emphasis added)

Judge Schaeffer found that this evidence was relevant.

Accordingly, inquiry into the rape was appropriate even if it resulted in Chandler taking the Fifth.

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